
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Putting our residents first

Borough Planning 
Committee
Date: THURSDAY 3 MARCH 2022

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Media are welcome to attend. 
This meeting may also be 
broadcast live.

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Henry Higgins (Chairman)
Councillor Steve Tuckwell (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Councillor Nicola Brightman
Councillor Jazz Dhillon
Councillor Allan Kauffman
Councillor John Morse (Opposition Lead)

Published: Wednesday 23 February 
2022

This Agenda is available online at:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or use a smart phone 
camera and scan the code below:

Contact: Anisha Teji
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/


Useful information for 
residents and visitors
Watching & recording this meeting

You can watch the public part of this meeting on the 
Council's YouTube channel, live or archived after the 
meeting. Residents and the media are also welcome to 
attend in person, and if they wish, report on the public part of 
the meeting. Any individual or organisation may record or 
film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt proceedings. 

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be met. The 
Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all attending and an area for 
the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should be contacted for further information 
and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the Civic 
Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with the 
Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk away. 
Limited parking is available at the Civic Centre. For details 
on availability and how to book a parking space, please 
contact Democratic Services. 

Please enter via main reception and visit the 
security desk to sign-in and collect a visitors pass. You will 
then be directed to the Committee Room.

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda please 
contact Democratic Services.  For those hard of hearing 
an Induction Loop System is available for use. 

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please 
follow the signs to the nearest FIRE EXIT and assemble on 
the Civic Centre forecourt. 

Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY 
INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to 
evacuate using the stairs, should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committees

Petitions, Speaking and Councillors
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 20 or more people who live in the Borough, can speak 
at a Planning Committee in support of or against an application.  Petitions must be submitted in writing to 
the Council in advance of the meeting.  Where there is a petition opposing a planning application there is 
also the right for the applicant or their agent to address the meeting for up to 5 minutes. The Chairman 
may vary speaking rights if there are multiple petitions  
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward. 
Committee Members – The planning committee is made up of the experienced Councillors who meet in 
public every three weeks to make decisions on applications. 

How the meeting works
The Planning Committees consider the more complex or controversial proposals for development and also 
enforcement action. 
Applications for smaller developments such as householder extensions are generally dealt with by the 
Council’s planning officers under delegated powers. 
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which comprises reports on each application
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the beginning of the meeting.  
The procedure will be as follows:- 

1. The Chairman will announce the report; 
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a presentation of plans and photographs; 
3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser will speak, followed by the agent/applicant followed by 

any Ward Councillors;
4. The Committee may ask questions of the petition organiser or of the agent/applicant; 
5. The Committee discuss the item and may seek clarification from officers; 
6. The Committee will vote on the recommendation in the report, or on an alternative 

recommendation put forward by a Member of the Committee, which has been seconded.

How the Committee makes decisions
The Committee must make its decisions by having regard to legislation, policies laid down by National 
Government, by the Greater London Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and Hillingdon’s own planning 
policies. The Committee must also make its decision based on material planning considerations and case 
law and material presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s report and any representations received. 
Guidance on how Members of the Committee must conduct themselves when dealing with planning 
matters and when making their decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of Conduct’, which is part of 
the Council’s Constitution. 
When making their decision, the Committee cannot take into account issues which are not planning 
considerations such as the effect of a development upon the value of surrounding properties, nor the loss 
of a view (which in itself is not sufficient ground for refusal of permission), nor a subjective opinion relating 
to the design of the property.  When making a decision to refuse an application, the Committee will be 
asked to provide detailed reasons for refusal based on material planning considerations.  
If a decision is made to refuse an application, the applicant has the right of appeal against the decision.  A 
Planning Inspector appointed by the Government will then consider the appeal.  There is no third party 
right of appeal, although a third party can apply to the High Court for Judicial Review, which must be done 
within 3 months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements
1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 8

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part I will be considered in 
Public and the Items marked Part II will be considered in Private

PART I - Members, Public and the Press

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page

6  The Angel Public 
House, 697 Uxbridge 
Road, Hayes 

6270/APP/2021/3877

Botwell Proposed change of use from 
Public House (Sui Generis) to 
Place of Worship (Use Class 
F.1(f)) and Community Centre 
(Use Class F.2(b)) 

Recommendation:  Refusal 

9 – 42

54 – 64 

7  The Angel Public 
House, 697 Uxbridge 
Road, Hayes 

6270/APP/2021/3878

Botwell Proposed change of use from 
Public House to Place of Worship 
and Community Centre with 
associated internal and external 
works (Application for Listed 
Building Consent)

Recommendation:  Refusal

43 – 52

65 – 75 

PART I - Plans for Borough Planning Committee                  53 - 76



Minutes

BOROUGH PLANNING COMMITTEE

15 February 2022

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge

Committee Members Present: 
Councillors Henry Higgins (Chairman)
Steve Tuckwell (Vice-Chairman)
Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Nicola Brightman
Jazz Dhillon
Allan Kauffman
John Morse (Opposition Lead)

Also Present:
Ward Cllr Heena Makwana 

LBH Officers Present: 
Neil Fraser, Democratic Services Officer
Roz Johnson, Planning Services Manager
Kerrie Munro
Alan Tilly, Transport Planning and Development Manager
Katie Crosbie, Planning Team Leader
Fiona Rae, Planning Team Leader

30.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1)

None.

31.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2)

None.

32.    TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Agenda 
Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2022 be 
approved as a correct record.

33.    MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT  (Agenda Item 
4)

None.

34.    TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THE ITEMS MARKED PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 5)

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



It was confirmed that all items would be considered in public.

35.    59 ELM AVENUE - 60130/APP/2021/4249  (Agenda Item 6)

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the addendum. The planning history 
regarding the development was set out, together with the outcome of previous appeals. 
Officers confirmed that, since the dismissed Appeal Decision relating to planning 
application reference 60130/APP/2020/4166, the housing mix had been revised to 
include 1 x three-bedroom unit, thereby addressing the Inspector’s one concern.

Therefore, and taking into consideration the Inspector’s decision, officers considered 
that there was no objection, in principle, to the creation of additional residential units in 
land use terms. The proposed siting, size, scale and height was not considered to 
unduly impact the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers, nor would the 
proposal generate such a significant increase in demand for road parking that its 
effects would result in harm to highway safety. On this basis, the application was 
recommended for approval, subject to amendment to Condition 20 to ensure 
pedestrian safety by raising kerb heights to prohibit vehicles overrunning the pavement 
at the junction.

A petitioner addressed the Committee in objection to the application. Key points 
highlighted included:

 This was the third application for development of this site, with the previous two 
applications refused, and it was felt that the application should be treated as a 
standalone application.

 The officer’s report inferred support from the Inspector on matters where no 
comment had been issued.

 Residents had concerns over the height and density of the development, 
locations of windows and their impact on the privacy of neighbours, its impact on 
the character of the area, and its potential harm to highways safety. 

 The development would require vehicles to manoeuvre from the parking spaces 
into a busy road, contributing to congestion and potential danger.

 Accident figures quoted in the report were not relevant, as the previous owner of 
the property did not drive. 

 The proposal failed to provide the required accessibility measures, particularly 
for wheelchair users.

 The design was of poor quality, with substandard access and a lack of energy 
sustainability.

By way of written submission, the agent for the applicant addressed the Committee. 
Key points highlighted included:

 Regarding Appeal Decision 3273062, for a similar development, the Appeal was 
dismissed for lack of a 3-bedroom dwelling though the Appeal Inspector 
determined that all other matters were found to be acceptable.

 The application included almost all of the same dwelling numbers, siting, design, 
scale, amenity, living spaces, external garden and parking spaces as the Appeal 
Scheme, with the only changes relating to a modification of the ground floor 
footprint with a 1.2m rear depth addition and inclusion of a 3-bedroom dwelling 
to address the Appeal Inspectors remaining concern.

 The modest ground floor rear addition would not be of a scale that would result 

Page 2



in a scheme materially different to the one determined by the Appeal Inspector 
in terms of scale, siting, character or harm to adjoining properties. 

 The applicant considered the present application to have addressed the Appeal 
Decision shortfall and requests members to grant approval, subject to 
conditions.

Ward Councillor Makwana addressed the Committee. Key points highlighted included:

 The Ward Councillor supported the resident objections.
 Due to its size and scale, the proposed development failed to harmonize and 

would cause harm to the street scene.
 The report appeared to acknowledge that the proposed development would 

cause an element of harm, seen through the imposition of 21 conditions.
 The proposal would result in potential danger to pedestrians and vehicles. The 

construction of the development would further intensity such issues during the 
building phase.

Officers addressed the points raised by the petitioner and Ward Councillor. Regarding 
height, officers considered the elevations of the proposed development versus 
neighbouring properties, as set out on the revised plans, to be acceptable. 

On density, while it was accepted that the development would contribute to a higher 
density than that recommended within the Hillingdon Local Plan, the context of the 
overall proposal, together with the decision of the Inspector, meant that the proposal 
was felt to be acceptable. 

On accessibility, the Council’s accessibility officer had deemed the scheme to be 
acceptable, while the accessibility policy allowed for further flexibility to adapt the 
property in the future, in line with accessibility standards. 

Regarding construction, condition 4 set out the requirement for the applicant to submit 
a construction management plan, that officers would review, to ensure minimal impact 
on neighbours.

On traffic congestion and highways safety, the Transport officer advised that based on 
the lighting, road markings, and speed limit currently in place, together with the low 
occurrences of road traffic accidents, safety was not a material concern. 

The Committee was advised that the proposed new vehicle crossover would be set 
back 5m from the junction with Oak Grove, in line with Council guidelines, and as per 
amendment to condition 20 as set out, would also prohibit vehicles from overrunning 
pavements. 

The Legal advisor confirmed that the Committee should have due regard to the 
Inspector’s decision, and set out the implications for the Council should the Committee 
be minded to refuse the application.

The Committee voiced their concerns over the design of the proposed development, 
including its size, scale and prominence, its impact on the street scene, and its 
potential for harm to pedestrians and motorists. However, the Committee was mindful 
of the Inspector’s decision relating to previous reasons for refusal. The Committee 
suggested that the vehicle crossover should be filled in as well as built up, though with 
space for pedestrian/wheelchair access, prior to the start of main construction. 

Page 3



The officer’s recommendation, inclusive of the change to condition 20 and the infilling 
of the vehicle crossover, was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote, agreed by 4 
votes in favour (with two abstentions).

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to an additional condition 
relating to junction kerb heights.

36.    WYLDEWOODE, 25 THE AVENUE - 13305/APP/2021/1007  (Agenda Item 7)

Officers introduced the report and addendum, highlighting that Planning permission 
had been refused in November 2020 for a redevelopment  scheme to provide four 
terraced dwellings on the site (ref. 13305/APP/2020/2670). This application sought to 
address the three reasons for refusal relating to the impact on the character and 
appearance of the area, the impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents and 
impact of the proposed landscaping scheme on 
site.

Officers considered that the reasons for refusal had, on balance, been addressed, with 
the new scheme successfully breaking the bulk and scale of development on the site 
with a revised design which responds to its context. The new scheme also changed the 
relationship to near neighbours and now 
retained a 45-degree angle to windows. The new scheme also proposed a markedly 
different landscaping scheme to the front. On this basis, the application was 
recommended for approval.

By way of written submission, a petitioner addressed the Committee in objection to the 
application. Key points included:

 The petitioner and their neighbours were concerned that the application was 
recommended for approval. 

 Paragraph 7.08 of the report stated that the new building was nearly 2m below 
No 21 The Avenue. From a detailed ground survey, prepared for the first 
proposal circa 2001, it showed that the ground level around No 21 was 67.76 
AOD and the level in the grounds of No 25, near the western boundary, was 
66.38 AOD. Thus, the level difference was 1.38m, which was substantially less 
than the 2.0m stated in the report. 

 From drawing no 5802 A100, the proposed development still appeared to cross 
the 45-degree line. Based on the information above, it was possible that the flat 
roof extension of the ground floor could be higher than the top of the fence 
between No 21 and 25, and further consideration should be given to the 
relationship between No 21 The Avenue and the proposed new development.

The agent on behalf of the application addressed the Committee. Key points included:

 The design of the new proposal was congruent with the other buildings in the 
road and the overall street scene.

 Depth had been reduced, while elevations versus ground level would have a 
negligible impact on neighbouring properties.

 The proposal addressed the prior concerns of the Committee and officers, and 
the previous reasons for refusal.

 The proposal would provide much needed family homes within the area.

Officers responded to points made by the petitioner. Officers confirmed that drawing no 
5802 A100 had been revised to ensure compliance with the 45-degree line, by 

Page 4



reducing the depth of the proposed buildings on site. Regarding the proposed levels on 
site and the perceived inaccuracies, Officers confirmed that whilst the level change was 
about 1.4m from ground level to ground level, the drop from cill height to cill height was 
much more generous, at almost 2m. This was shown on the slides to Committee in 
detail. Officers also confirmed the distance between flank walls, and the distance 
between No.21 and the new rear projection, and stated that, on balance,  the overall 
impact on neighbouring properties was deemed acceptable.

The Committee supported the officers recommendation, though suggested that 
condition 7, landscaping, be amended to mandate the planting of carbon absorbing 
trees. 

The officer’s recommendation, inclusive of the amendment to condition 7, was moved, 
seconded, and when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to amendment to the 
landscaping condition relating to the use of carbon absorbing trees.*

*Councillor Kauffman was not present for the entirety of the presentation, and therefore 
did not take part in discussion or the vote on the item.

37.    22 FRINGEWOOD CLOSE - 42066/APP/2021/4244  (Agenda Item 8)

Officers introduced the report. Officers asserted that the proposed annexe would 
provide a self-contained residential unit, thus creating a new planning unit, capable of 
functioning independently from the main dwelling. The proposed annexe was felt to 
provide the future occupier with a substandard  form  of accommodation,  in  terms  of  
external  space  provision  and  unacceptably  undermine  the size, quality and 
functionality of the existing external amenity space provision. Additionally, the proposal 
would adversely  impact on the character  and appearance  of the area, and the 
residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers.

Officers advised that the limited evidence submitted to demonstrate that there was an 
essential requirement for the proposed self-contained annexe on personal medical 
grounds was not considered  to  outweigh  the harm  identified.  As such, the proposal  
conflicted  with the Development Plan and the application was therefore recommended 
for refusal.

A petitioner in support of the application addressed the Committee. Key points 
included:

 27 local residents had signed the petition in support of the applicant, who 
required the annexe for use by their elderly mother.

 The applicant’s mother had serious health issues and limited quality of living due 
to her inability to navigate stairs at her current property.

 Local residents did not feel that the proposed annexe would adversely impact on 
their properties, with sufficient gaps present from the annexe to neighbours.

 There was no breach of the 45-degree line, with the property screened by trees 
and not visible from Ducks Hill Road.

 Other extensions permitted in the road were substantially higher than the 
annexe proposed.  

The applicant addressed the Committee. Key points included:

Page 5



 The applicant required the annexe to allow their elderly mother to enjoy a higher 
quality of independent living in her latter years.

 The applicant’s mother had health issues, could no longer safely navigate stairs, 
and had experienced falls. The annexe would therefore be more suitable and 
allowed for use of a wheelchair.

 The ground floor level of the annexe would allow for the occupant to safely enjoy 
the garden without having to climb to a higher level.

 The local General Practitioner had submitted a letter in support of the annexe as 
an aid to better physical and mental health on behalf of the applicant’s mother.

 Local residents were in support of the proposal.
 It was the applicant’s intention in future years to move into the annexe with his 

wife and allow his children to live in the main house.
 Owing to the special personal circumstances, the application should be 

approved.

The Chairman confirmed that Ward Councillor Melvin had voiced her support for the 
application outside of the meeting.

The Committee was sympathetic to the applicant’s personal circumstances but agreed 
with the officer’s recommendation to refuse due to the refusal reasons set out in the 
report, with particularly concerns relating to the proposed size and scale of the annexe 
building.

The officer’s recommendation was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote, 
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

38.    WOODLANDS, 5 THE DRIVE, ICKENHAM - 56190/APP/2021/2737  (Agenda Item 9)

Officers introduced the report. Officers considered that, as the application sought to 
demolish the current building and replace it with a building of similar scale, this 
constituted appropriate development within the Green Belt. Subject to planning 
conditions, the development was also considered acceptable with regard to its impact 
on the character of the area, street scene, highway network, waste, landscaping, 
access, flooding and contaminated land. Consultees had also raised no objections. 
Accordingly, the application was recommended for approval.

The Committee supported the officer’s recommendation, but suggested that conditions 
be amended to mandate the planting of carbon absorbing trees, and the securing of 
appropriate energy/sustainability measures, in order to support the Council’s work to 
address climate change.

The officer’s recommendation, inclusive of the amendments to conditions as set out, 
was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to additional conditions 
relating to the use of carbon absorbing trees, and sustainability/energy.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.39 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 

Page 6



resolutions please contact Neil Fraser on 01895 250692.  Circulation of these minutes 
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



PO

TCBs

Charolais
House

LB

Sub
El

Warehouse 40.4m

Garage

GP

Sta

Police

Play Area

42.4m

Link HouseShelter

House

The Angel

Station

1 to 20

Shelter

Thurbin

1 to 12

(PH)

´

Site Address:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

Page 42



Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Play Area

42.4m

Link HouseShelter

House

The Angel

Station

PO

TCBs

Charolais
House

LB

Sub
El

1 to 20

Shelter

Thurbin

1 to 12

(PH)

Warehouse 40.4m

Garage

GP

Sta

Police

´

March 2022

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

The Angel Public House,  
687 Uxbridge Road,

 Hayes 

Borough

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

6270/APP/2021/3878 

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



ILLINGDON 
LONDON 

Plans for 

  Planning 
Committee 

Page 53

Agenda Annex



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 The Angel Public House, 697 Uxbridge Road, Hayes -  6270/APP/2021/3877
	7 The Angel Public House, 697 Uxbridge Road, Hayes - 6270/APP/2021/3878
	 PART I - Plans for Borough Planning Committee

